
HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

2nd Interim and LCAP Workshop 
Hamilton High School Library/Zoom/Facebook Live 

Wednesday, March 10, 2021 

 
5:30 p.m.  Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only via Zoom:  
5:30 p.m.  Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below via Zoom (For Board Only) 
6:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m. via Facebook Live or Zoom (see below) 

 

Hamilton Unified School District Board Meetings are open to the public. We are still adhering to social distancing for 
public safety so in-person seating capacity in the Hamilton High School Library is limited to thirteen attendees.  
As authorized by the Governor’s Emergency Executive Orders issued on March 12 and 17, 2020, the Hamilton Unified 
School District Board of Education will continue to conduct Board of Education meetings by video conference until further 
notice. Please join the meeting by attending the livestream via Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook page or through 
the below Zoom link or dial by phone as listed below: 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83491737547?pwd=bisrUVlQM2g5bm5hdE9zTkVmVXk0Zz09 
 
Meeting ID: 834 9173 7547 
Passcode: board 
 
Dial in: 
        +1 669 900 6833 
Meeting ID: 834 9173 7547 
Passcode: 147712 

 

1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 
a. Call to order and roll call 

 
_______Hubert “Wendell” Lower, President  _______Rod Boone, Clerk   _______Gabriel Leal 
_______Genaro Reyes    _______Ray Odom 
 

2.0 IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 
 

3.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board 
may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item. 

 
4.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters. 

a. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment, 
resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees. 

b. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, 
Superintendent Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations. 

c. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified 
School District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394. 

d. Conference with Real Property Negotiators. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School, 
approximately located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency 
Negotiator: Jeremy Powell, Superintendent; Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties: 
Westermann Family and Hamilton Unified School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment. 
 
Report out action taken in closed session. 

 
 

5.0 PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:   
 

6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83491737547?pwd%3DbisrUVlQM2g5bm5hdE9zTkVmVXk0Zz09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1614453919926000&usg=AOvVaw1sbWGx1N5bmeTshtatClID


 
7.0   PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 

heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 

 
8.0   ACTION ITEMS: 

a. Second Interim Report (p. 3) 
b. Approve Updated HHS and HUSD COVID-19 Participation Liability Waivers 
c. Approve HUSD COVID-19 Athletics Update and Althetics Specator Guidelines 

 
9.0   DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

a. Strategic Planning (p. 144) 
b. LCAP Planning (p. 146) 

 
10.0   ADJOURNMENT: 



HAMILTON UNIFIED  
SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Summary of 
2020-21 Second Interim 

Presented at the March 10th, 2021 Special Board Meeting 

Prepared by Kristen Hamman 

P
age 3



2020-21 Second Interim 
General Fund Revenues  

 
First Interim 
2020-21 Projected Year Totals 

Revenues Unrestricted/ 
Restricted 

LCFF Sources 7,711,013 

Federal Revenue 1,154,128 

Other State Revenue 553,009 

Other Local Revenue 150,442 

Total Revenues 9,568,592 

Second Interim  
2020-21 Projected Year Totals 

Revenues Unrestricted/ 
Restricted 

LCFF Sources 7,714,760 

Federal Revenue 1,162,187 

Other State Revenue 561,743 

Other Local Revenue 150,442 

Total Revenues 9,589,132 

2020-21 General Fund Revenues are located on Page 28 of the board packet. 

Estimated Funded ADA Projected Year Totals: 671.17 
 (based on current year) 

Estimated Funded ADA Projected Year Totals: 671.17 
                           (Based on current year) 

P
age 4



2020-21 Second Interim 
General Fund Expenditures  

 
First Interim 
2020-21 Projected Year Totals 

Expenditures Unrestricted/ 
Restricted 

Certificated Salaries 3,059,086 

Classified Salaries 1,054,399 

Employee Benefits 1,737,160 

Books & Supplies 929,401 

Services & Other 1,156,831 

Capital Outlay 337,122 

Other Outgo (no IC*) 992,870 

Other Outgo (IC*) (17,786) 

Total Expenditures 9,249,083 

Second Interim 
2020-21 Projected Year Totals 

Expenditures Unrestricted/ 
Restricted 

Certificated Salaries 3,115,770 

Classified Salaries 1,046,639 

Employee Benefits 1,748,336 

Books & Supplies 745,160 

Services & Other 1,144,947 

Capital Outlay 410,340 

Other Outgo (no IC*) 990,860 

Other Outgo (IC*) (17,786) 

Total Expenditures 9,184,266 

* IC = Indirect Costs; 2020-21 General Fund Expenditures are located on Page 28 of the board packet. 

 

P
age 5



2020-21 Second Interim 
General Fund changes in Fund Balance  

 
First Interim 
2020-21 Projected Year Totals 

Change in Fund 
Balance 

Unrestricted/ 
Restricted 

Beginning Fund Bal. 887,322 

Revenues 9,568,592 

Expenditures (9,249,083) 

Interfund Transfers (25,000) 

Increase (Decrease) 
in Fund Bal. 

294,509 

Ending Fund Bal. 1,181,831 

Second Interim 
2020-21 Projected Year Totals 

Change in Fund 
Balance 

Unrestricted/ 
Restricted 

Beginning Fund Bal. 887,322 

Revenues 9,589,132 

Expenditures (9,184,266) 

Interfund Transfers (25,000) 

Increase (Decrease) 
in Fund Bal. 

379,866 

Ending Fund Bal. 1,267,188 

2020-21 General Fund changes in Fund Balance are located on Page 28 and 29 of the board packet. 

P
age 6



2020-21 Second Interim 
General Fund Multiyear Projections 

Description 20-21 Projected 
Year Totals 

2021-22 
Projection 

2022-23 
Projection 

Beginning Fund Bal. 887,322 1,267,188 1,755,897 

Revenues 9,589,132 8,517,139 8,606,235 

Expenditures (9,184,266) (7,975,430) (8,369,990) 

Interfund Transfers (25,000) (53,000) (53,000) 

Increase (Decrease) 
in Fund Bal. 

379,866 488,709 183,245 
 

Ending Fund Bal. 1,267,188 1,755,897 1,939,142 

2020-21 Multiyear Projections are located on Page 114 of the board packet. 

P
age 7



Other District Funds 
2020-21 Projected Ending Fund Balances 

 
• Fund 11, Adult Education (pg 38)            $  119,854 

• Fund 12, Child Development (pg 45)           $       2,159 

• Fund 13, Cafeteria Special Revenue (pg 52)          $     83,727 

• Fund 14, Deferred Maintenance (pg 59)                       $     67,508 

• Fund 17, Other Than Capital Outlay Projects (pg 65) $   395,463 

• Fund 20, Postemployment Benefits (pg 69)          $   220,310 

• Fund 21, Building - Bond (pg 73)            $1,453,897 

• Fund 25, Capital Facilities (pg 80)                       $   186,504 

• Fund 51, Bond Interest & Redemption (pg 94)          $   435,021 

P
age 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Strategic Planning/LCAP Planning Priorities 2020-2021 Update
Priority Level 

(1=high-3 
lower)

Group Goal Cost
One-Time 

or 
Ongoing

Notes 2020-2021 Update

1 Community HUSD: Parent Education Programs $5,000 Ongoing Parenting Partners is a potential Education Program

2 Community HUSD: Standardized App for communication $8,000
One-
time/ 
Ongoing

Ready to Launch App, $2,000 potential annual ongoing, 
have Aeries Communication also

Completed: Launched in September 2020: HUSD Mobil App 
(80 Downloads as of 3/3/2021)

2 Community HHS: Career Day $1,500 Ongoing
For materials/supplies/t-shirts; invite former students to 
speak

2 Community HAS: Look to add community needed courses Ongoing Survey Community

3 Community HHS & HES: More family events $0 Ongoing
Need to create parent survey to see increased 
events/needs

3 Community HUSD: Computer Access for Community Ongoing
Adult Education Access or extended libarary hours (see 
below)

Created Parent Hub at Adult School for Independent Study 
Parents, February 2021

1 Ed. Program HUSD: Improve Educational Technology Access $10,000 Ongoing Annual-connectivity, devices, parent training
Moved into 1:1 Student Learning Spring 2021, Sent home 
mobil HotSpots Fall 2021

1 Ed. Program HES: Literacy Center $25,000 Ongoing Purchase supplies, materials, and salary of employee

1 Ed. Program HUSD: After Hours Computer Lab/Community Resources $6,000 Ongoing
Extended Library hours at HHS twice weekly, employee 
salary

Adult School has continued to offer Adult Computer 
Literacy Classes

1 Ed. Program HUSD: Further develop MTSS $10,000 Ongoing Materials, Supplies, Teacher Stipends
Continued to build/implement Social/Emotional/Academic 
Supports; 3 Staff Recevied CAST Training

2 Ed. Program HUSD: Develop College/Career Awareness $2,500 Ongoing
Create a plan K-12 with Benchmarks/Expectations for all 
grade levels

2 Ed. Program HHS: College Visits $5,000 Ongoing
Further funds for campus visits and college awareness; 
need to fund two trips (seniors in fall, juniors in spring)

2 Ed. Program HHS: Develop College Credit Accessability $0 Ongoing Work with Butte College
Looking to create "mini" Pathway focused on Agriculture 
for the 2021-2022 school year

3 Ed. Program HUSD: Visual and Performing Arts Program $85,000 Ongoing
Need further development; teacher salary and benefit 
package

3 Ed. Program HHS: Expand Vocational Training Options $85,000 Ongoing
Need further development; teacher salary and benefit 
package

3 Ed. Program HHS: Develop Career Pathway Program $85,000 Ongoing
Need further development; teacher salary and benefit 
package See Dual Enrollment Program

3 Ed. Program HUSD:  Develop Life Skills Class sequence $85,000 Ongoing
Need further development; teacher salary and benefit 
package

3 Ed. Program HUSD: After School Tutoring $6,000 Ongoing Employee(s) salary

P
age 144



1 Facilities HES: Develop plan for student drop off/pickup incl. relocation of Bus Drop $2,500 One-time Alan is working with Highway Patrol and HC Fire Dept.
Completed: Student Drop off moved, re-established, 
October 2020

1 Facilities HES: Eliminate Uneven Surfaces $25,000 One-time Need consideratoin for ongoing maintenance

1 Facilities HES: Trashcan area renovation $15,000 One-time Alan has begun discussion with Mike Cannon on this Project Plan is in place, need funds released from Bond

1 Facilities HHS: Gym Painting $30,000 One-time Quotes from 2019-2020 school year for paint Plan is in place, need funds released from Bond

1 Facilities HES: Update/Renovate Bathrooms $40,000 One-time

2 Facilities HES: Improve Entry/Exit for Pre-School $5,000 One-time Work with Pre-school staff

3 Facilities HHS Electronic Sign $40,000 One-time Donations will cover cost, working on this currently Completed: Electric Sign donated October 2020

3 Facilities HHS & HES: PA Systems (in cafeteria also) $120,000 One-time
Derek and Frank have received quotes (but looking at 
options for a net-savings through finance

Step one complete: Phone system updated, need 
additional funds to complete project.

3 Facilities HES: Improve Parking $1,200 One-time Alan has begun discussion with Mike Cannon on this Project

3 Facilities HES & HHS: Install Driniking Stations $2,500 One-time
Install new drinking and fix/upgrade exisiting; potential for 
grants

Plan in place, using COVID funds to install new drinking 
fountain/watter bottle filling stations.

3 Facilities HHS: Tennis Court Renovation $10,000 One-time Renovate Tennis court to be Futsal Courts (soccer)

3 Facilities HHS & HES: Painting of Buildings $80,000 One-time
In process of Color Palette selection (included with 
Educatoinal Spec. Project), Summer Project painting of 
doors and trim

3 Facilities HHS: Landscape Beautification $3,000 Ongoing Annual Budgeting Ongoing

3 Facilities EBHS: Renovate Rose Garden and Parking $15,000 One-time
Alan has begun discussion with Mike Cannon on this 
Project; possibly use Adult Ed funds Plan in place, Summer Project

3 Facilities HHS Lockers: Paint and/or Purchase new $10,000 One-time Completed: Lockers re-painted Summer 2020

3 Facilities HES: Landscape Beautification $3,000 Ongoing Annual Budgeting ongoing

3 Facilities HES: Improve/Replace Front Fencing $25,000 One-time Iron Fencing Length of Elementary School front Plan is in place, need funds released from Bond

3 Facilities HES: Electronic Sign $5,000 One-time Alan has met with sign representatives to get quotes Fixed October 2020, working

3 Facilities HES: Review need for lockers $25,000 One-time
Quick review during HULC, no need for MS lockers at this 
time

1 Safety HES: Adjust Staff Door when closing $0 One-time Door needs to be replaced in time Completed: April 2020

1 Safety HHS: Canal Street Crossing for Students  Crosswalk at EBHS $1,500 One-time Need to further research

1 Safety HES: Canal Street Parking/Crossing $5,000 One-time Need to further research

1 Safety HES: Gate Lock Procedure $0 One-time Need to develop procedure and provide PD for all staff

1 Safety HHS & HES: Additional Security Cameras $4,000 One-time Estimate (7/19) + Install (staff time & parts) 

1 Safety HUSD: Fire Alarm System $15,000 One-time Alan and Jeremy will follow up
Install of Knox boxes at all sites, need further funds 
released to complete

1 Safety More visitor signage to advise check-in at office $1,500 One-time Tiffany/Alan will work on this

2 Safety HES: Additional Lighting - motion lights strategically placed $5,000 One-time

2 Safety HHS: Repair Potholes $15,000 One-time Need consideratoin for ongoing maintenance

3 Safety HUSD: Expand SRO Position $125,000 Ongoing
Would need to Sub-contract through Glenn County Sheriff 
Dept

P
age 145



2019-2020 LCAP/Strategic Planning Survey 
Results

Presented: March 11, 2020

P
age 146



Response Data

P
age 147



P
age 148



P
age 149



P
age 150



P
age 151



P
age 152



How Can We Improve our Schools (Parent Response)
● As a property tax payer, open the library to the community twice a week. This would allow students to use resources and adults to use as 

well. Bond prop was passed with this agreement between HHS  and the community.
● At this time as a parent I have no complaints
● Cleaner classrooms and campus.
● Communications with parents and teachers
● Do better at notifying when major problems  arise
● Drop off and pick up section
● Get rid of teachers that are not successful  teaching the students.
● Having it cleaner, reduce bullying
● High quality science instructors that mentor students and teach them through activities.  More teachers like Mello. 
● More honor Spanish offerings More electives
● I find Hamilton high school to be exceptional in all areas.
● I think we really need a school nurse office and have a nurse be here all day during school hours.
● More books in Spanish for the classes of dual immersion. As well as more hours in the library in Spanish
● More communication with upper grade teachers.
● I understand they are very busy, but giving them more opportunities to reach out to parents or meeting with them. Also, the physical. 

Appearance of our school can use a touch up to make it look nicer for our beautiful children and staff!
● More security, locked gates at all times.
●  More parking availability.
● Parking! & more locked and guarded gates
● Partnership with community colleges to assist with after school tutoring.
● The elementary is lacking many things. It needs drinking fountains and a whole new face lift. The fields have pot holes, which is a big 

concern (injuries).
● Yo estoy en la escuala de adultos y he siento muy satifecha yo que la teacher nos de lo mejor para aprender.
● Estar revisando constantemente sus mochilas para ver que no estén consumiendo drogas

P
age 153



P
age 154



P
age 155



Is there another Program or Interest you may suggest (Parent Response)

● More time after school for library and Dual immersion books
● Expand after school programs
● Special ed.
● Home economics, woodshop back in high school
● Band for younger students.
● Wood shop, auto mechanics, etc.
● Career planning programs
● A opportunity to learn both books and hands on to better understand program activities
● More programs for second generation college students
● Class that teaches about taxes, interest, budgets, and "real life" when the bills start after high school

P
age 156



Is there another Program or Interest you may suggest (Staff Response)

● A special day class. This could be for students who have behavioral problems that are taking away from other students in the class and need a place to 
get work done but will not take away from other students. The most important of them all is another resource room. I have students who just need that 
extra support in academics to meet their special needs in a least restrictive environment.

● Bring back the wood shop.
● BUSINESS-LIFE SKILLS (WRITE A CHECK!)
● Career in technology training
● Certificate programs in farm and medical.
● Enforce no child left behind program
● Farm Certificate programs and medical certificate programs
● I strongly feel it is very important for our high school students to have access to technology in every classroom and at home.
● I would like to see increased opportunities for middle school students to do service learning projects and access leadership opportunities through 

buddies and/or peer tutoring/clubs for areas of interest .
● More technology and online training.
● Our students are lacking in life skills and social emotional support
● Outdoor Education Class
● Strong intervention programs for our students.
● Strong intervention programs to support students.
● We need a community day school for our students who need an alternative school setting.
● Wood Shop and/or Auto Shop.
● Woodshop

P
age 157




